DELEGATED DECISIONS BY CABINET MEMBER FOR TRANSPORT MANAGEMENT

MINUTES of the meeting held on Thursday, 22 February 2024 commencing at 10.00 am and finishing at 12.25 pm

Present:

Voting Members: – in the Chair

Councillor Andrew Gant – in the Chair.

Other Members in Attendance:

Councillor Brad Baines (Agenda Item 5) Councillor Alison Rooke (Agenda Item 7)

Councillor Nathan Ley (Agenda Item 7)

By Invitation:

Officers:

Whole of meeting Jack Ahier (Democratic Services Officer), Sharon

Keenlyside (Senior Democratic Services Officer), Cathy Champion (Operations Manager – Civil Enforcement), Vikki Neville (Senior Officer – TRO and Schemes), Rosie Wood (Senior Engineer Ext Con), Paul Fermer (Director

of Highways and Operations).

Part of meeting

Agenda Item Officer Attending

The Cabinet Member for Transport Management considered the matters, reports and recommendations contained or referred to in the agenda for the meeting [, together with a schedule of addenda tabled at the meeting/the following additional documents:] and agreed as set out below. Copies of the agenda and reports [agenda, reports and schedule/additional documents] are attached to the signed Minutes.

1/24 DECLARATION OF INTEREST

(Agenda No. 1)

There were none.

2/24 QUESTIONS FROM COUNTY COUNCILLORS

(Agenda No. 2)

See published addenda – Questions from County Councillors.

3/24 PETITIONS AND PUBLIC ADDRESS

(Agenda No. 3)

The following speakers addressed the meeting:

Item 5	Parking review of South Oxford (extension) CPZ Dec 2023	 Katriona Bingham-Hall Danny Yee (Oxfordshire Liveable Streets) Richard Shallard Cllr Brad Baines
Item 6	Cowley Centre West CPZ amendments – 2023	John CenterDanny Yee (Oxfordshire Liveable Streets)
Item 7	Abingdon – B4017 Bath Street – proposed no waiting at any time restrictions and cycle lane	 Robin Tucker (Co-Chair CoSAT) Cllr Nathan Ley Cllr Alison Rooke
Item 8	Alvescot: Main Road – proposed traffic calming	Robin Tucker (Co-Chair CoSAT)

4/24 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING

(Agenda No. 4)

The minutes of the meeting held on 25 January 2024 to be signed by the Chair as a correct record.

5/24 PARKING REVIEW OF SOUTH OXFORD (EXTENSION) CPZ DEC 2023 (Agenda No. 5)

The report presented responses to the statutory consultation on the proposed amendment to times of operation of the Controlled Parking Zone (CPZ) in various locations in South Oxford.

The Chair invited the speakers in turn to address the meeting and responded to points raised.

The Chair commented that this proposal was complex as it covered various streets, each with their own individual issues. It was a balancing act to meet all the requirements. The proposal was to help facilitate the use of sustainable transport modes and alleviate parking stress.

The Chair wanted to give assurance to businesses that loading and unloading on a double yellow line is permitted.

The Chair clarified with officers, details of the changed operational hours and use of visitor permits.

In reference to the bus company's request for an uplift in enforcement, officers explained that enforcement officers visit the areas regularly. The Chair commented that there was more money in the budget for enforcement.

The Chair asked officers to keep the parking at the health centre under review.

The Chair thanked the speakers and everyone who had responded to the consultation.

The Cabinet Member for Transport Management **APPROVED** the following as advertised:

- a) Change of times of operation to '8am to 8pm Monday to Saturday (two hours waiting no return in two hours for non-permit holders)' on: Bertie Place, Canning Crescent, Chatham Road, Fox Crescent, John Towle Close, Lincoln Road, Monmouth Road, Norreys Avenue, Northampton Road, Oswestry Road, Peel Place, Sunningwell Road, Weirs Lane, and Wytham Street.
- b) Change of times of operation to '8am to 8pm Monday to Sunday (one hour waiting no return in one hour for non-permit holders)' on: Gordon Street, Green Place, Lake Street, School Place, Stewart Street, Summerfield, Vicarage Lane, and Vicarage Road.
- C) Introduction of new 'No Waiting at Any Time' (double yellow lines) restrictions on: Abingdon Road, Bertie Place, Canning Crescent: Chatham Road, Fox Crescent, Green Place, Lake Street, Northampton Road, Stewart Street, Vicarage Lane, Vicarage Road, Weirs Lane, and Wytham Street.

6/24 COWLEY CENTRE WEST CPZ AMENDMENTS - 2023 (Agenda No. 6)

The report presented responses to a statutory consultation on a proposal to introduce new and amend existing 'No Waiting at Any Time' restrictions on parts of Crowell Road and Rahere Road and to remove an existing 2-hour parking place for nonpermit holders in Crowell Road.

The Chair invited the speakers in turn to address the meeting and responded to points raised.

The Chair indicated his gratitude for the responses in the consultation and noted that the majority of respondents to the consultation objected to the proposals.

The Chair noted issues were raised regarding dropping-off and loading on double yellow lines. The Chair referred to the answer he gave in the previous item regarding dropping-off on double yellow lines.

The Chair referenced partial support from respondents in terms of this scheme not going far enough and stated that, whilst outside of the scope of this particular proposal, if there was a case, it would be heard.

The Cabinet Member for Transport Management **APPROVED** the following as advertised:

- d) Replace the various lengths of existing 'No Waiting 8am to 6.30pm Monday to Saturday' (single yellow lines) parking restrictions & the two-hour shared use parking bay opposite the junction with Hockmore Street with new 'No Waiting at Any Time' (double yellow lines) on Crowell Road.
- e) Extend the existing double yellow lines on Rahere Road, southwards from Bartholomew Road for 30 metres on the eastern side, and 27 metres on the western side.

7/24 ABINGDON - B4017 BATH STREET - PROPOSED NO WAITING AT ANY TIME RESTRICTIONS AND CYCLE LANE (Agenda No. 7)

The Chair introduced the report to the meeting and invited the speakers in turn to address the meeting and responded to points raised.

The Chair stressed the need to find balance between safety and amenities for cyclists alongside the need for residents to have parking.

The Chair noted the support the proposals had in previous consultations.

The Chair referenced his concern for the loss of amenities for the residents of Bath Street and invited officers to provide further information.

Officers reflected that a wider review of the CPZ and parking in the area needed to be undertaken more generally. The Chair responded that the clear impact of the proposals on Bath Street residential parking needed to be understood.

Officers explained the loss of amenity for residents that would arise from these proposals.

The Chair made an amendment to recommendation b) to add 'including the residents of Bath Street' at the end of the sentence, and added another recommendation, recommendation c), which stated 'to instruct officers to expedite the review of the impact of the proposed changes in parking and to defer the implementation of recommendation a) until this has been completed'.

The Chair thanked the officers and speakers for their contributions.

The Cabinet Member for Transport Management APPROVED:

- a) As advertised, the extension of the existing 'No Waiting at Any Time' parking restriction (double yellow lines) on the east side of Bath Street, south of the Fitzharry's Road link footpath.
- b) To instruct officers to review and agree the proposed advisory cycle provision in consultation with local cycling groups, local member and other local stakeholders including the residents of Bath Street.
- c) To instruct officers to expedite the review of the impact of the proposed changes in parking and to defer the implementation of recommendation a) until this has been completed.

8/24 ALVESCOT: MAIN ROAD - PROPOSED TRAFFIC CALMING (Agenda No. 8)

The Chair introduced the report to the meeting and invited the speaker to address the meeting and responded to points raised.

The Chair stated that the objections largely make the case for greater traffic-calming measures.

The Chair noted the good level of response from the consultation and thanked them for their time in responding.

The Cabinet Member for Transport Management APPROVED

a) As advertised, the traffic calming carriageway narrowing feature on the B4020 Main Road, Alvescot.

	in the	Chair
Date of signing	 21/03	/2024